
STANDARDS COMMITTEE AGENDA

Date: Thursday, 19 November 2020

Time: 10.00 am

Venue: Virtual Meeting on Microsoft Teams

11 November 2020

PART 1
1. Apologies for absence, if any. 

2. Urgent items of business, if any (24 hours notice to be provided to the Chairman). 

3. To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the previous meeting. (Pages 3 - 4)

4. Declarations of interest, if any: 
 Disclosable Pecuniary Interest;
 Other interests.

5. Standards Matter 2 - Public Consultation (Pages 5 - 12)

6. Standards Committee Annual Report (Pages 13 - 20)

7. Local Government Ombudsman Annual letter (Pages 21 - 26)

8. Member Development Annual Review (Pages 27 - 30)

9. Exclusion of the Press and Public 
The Chair to move:-

"That pursuant to Section 100A(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or nature of the proceedings whereby it is likely that exempt information 
as defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would be disclosed to the public in breach 
of the obligation of confidence or exempt information as defined in Section 100I (1) 
of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act would be disclosed to the public by virtue of the 
paragraphs indicated."

10. To approve as a correct record the Exempt Minutes of the previous meeting. 
(Pages 31 - 32)

Public Document Pack



11. Standards Complaints Monitoring Report (Pages 33 - 36)

MARK TRILLO
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND MONITORING OFFICER

Membership of Standards Committee (SMDC)
Councillor G Bond (Chair) Councillor B Emery (Vice-Chair)
Councillor J Aberley Councillor I Herdman
Councillor K J Jackson Councillor B Johnson
Councillor K Martin Councillor P Taylor
Councillor P Wilkinson D Fowler
Councillor B A Hughes



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

STANDARDS COMMITTEE MEETING

Minutes

FRIDAY, 11 SEPTEMBER 2020
PRESENT: Councillor G Bond (Chair) 

Councillors J Aberley, B Emery, I Herdman, Councillor B A Hughes, 
K J Jackson, K Martin, P Taylor and P Wilkinson

IN ATTEDNANCE: M Trillo Executive Director (People) and Monitoring 
Officer

P Rushworth Head of Legal and Election Services
P Trafford Member & Community Services Officer
L Vernon Senior Officer (Governance and Member 

Support)

APOLOGIES: Councillors B Johnson and D Fowler

18 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS, IF ANY (24 HOURS NOTICE TO BE 
PROVIDED TO THE CHAIRMAN).

There were no urgent items of business.

19 TO APPROVE AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE 
PREVIOUS MEETING.

RESOLVED – That the Minutes of the meeting of that Standards Committee held on 
21 November 2019 be APPROVED as a correct record and signed 
by the Chair.

20 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST, IF ANY:

There were no declarations of interest.

21 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION - DRAFT MODEL MEMBER CODE 
OF CONDUCT

Paul Rushworth (Corporate Services Manager (Legal and Elections) and Deputy 
Monitoring Officer) presented the report following a review in 2018 of local 
government ethical standards by the Committee for Standards in Public Life. The 
review found that there was inconsistency between codes of conduct in local 
authorities. It was therefore recommended that the Local Government Association 
(LGA) should produce a new national ‘model code’ which took into account changes 
to the political environment, such as the increasing use of social media in public life, 
with the discretion for individual authorities to adapt the model code to fit local 
circumstances.

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Standards Committee (SMDC) - 11 September 2020

2

The LGA had reviewed their previous Model Code and had conducted a consultation 
exercise. The final version of the Code was to be offered as a template for councils 
to adopt in whole and / or with local amendments.

During discussion, it was noted that changes to legislation were needed in order to 
determine whether or not a person was acting in their role as a District Councillor. It 
was pointed out that a further ‘Webinar’ was due to take place on 17 September 
2020. When the Model Code returns from LGA, it was for the Council to decide 
whether or not to adopt it. The same also applied to Town and Parish Councils. 
Training would be provided at that time.

RESOLVED – That the report be NOTED.

22 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED:

That, pursuant to Section 100A(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings whereby it is likely that confidential 
information as defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would be disclosed to the public 
in breach of the obligation of confidence or exempt information as defined in Section 
100 I (1)  of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act would be disclosed to the public by 
virtue of the Paragraphs indicated.

23 TO APPROVE AS A CORRECT RECORD THE EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE 
PREVIOUS MEETING.

Members considered the Exempt Minutes of the meeting held on 21 November 
2019.

24 STANDARDS COMPLAINTS MONITORING REPORT.

Members considered a report on complaints made under the Code of Conduct in the 
period since the committee previously met.

The meeting closed at 11.00 am

_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date

Page 4



AGENDA ITEM 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Report to Standards Committee

19 November 2020

Appendices attached:
Appendix1 - The Committee on Standards in Public Life review of the 
institutions, processes and structures in place to support high standards of 
conduct.

1. Reason for the Report: 
 

1.1. To inform Members about a consultation exercise and a public sector survey 
in respect of a review by the Committee for Standards in Public Life into 
current principles, institutions, and arrangements for upholding standards in 
public life.  

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Standards Committee notes the contents of the report and authorises 
officers to feedback any relevant response to the consultation exercise. 

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The Committee on Standards in Public Life (CSPL) is conducting a broad 
review of the infrastructure and institutions which deal with standards in public 
life. The Committee has identified a wider range of bodies involved in 
investigating, promoting, and maintaining standards, based on the Nolan 
principles. The Committee is now consulting with stakeholders to determine 
the most appropriate way of promoting standards in public life through those 

TITLE: Committee on Standards in Public Life – 
Ethical standards Review

PORTFOLIO: Leader of the Council – Councillor Ralphs

OFFICER: Executive Director (People) and Monitoring 
Officer

WARDS: All

Page 5

Agenda Item 5

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/committee-on-standards-in-public-life-announces-landscape-review-of-public-standards
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/committee-on-standards-in-public-life-announces-landscape-review-of-public-standards
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/committee-on-standards-in-public-life-announces-landscape-review-of-public-standards


institutions. The previous review was undertaken in 2013. The consultation 
exercise closes on 18 December 2020. The full background information in 
support of the review is found in the Appendix.   

3.2 The review will look at best practice and identify any themes and gaps in the 
way the Seven Principles of Public Life are promoted and maintained.

3.3 In addition to sharing any lessons learned and best practice, the Committee 
will consider whether there are gaps or issues that require further work. The 
Committee wants to check whether the Nolan principles are well understood, 
properly embedded and that they continue to reflect the standards expected 
by the public of those that serve them.

4. Implications

4.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)

None.

4.2 Workforce

None.

4.3 Equality and Diversity - Equality Impact Assessment

An equality and diversity impact assessment has not been carried 
out for this report.   

4.4 Financial Considerations

None.

4.5 Legal

There are no direct legal aspects to this report. 

4.6 Sustainability

None.

4.7 Internal and External Consultation

This report considers a central government consultation exercise.  

4.8 Risk Assessment

None.

Page 6



Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

5. Detail

5.1 The Committee on Standards in Public Life is carrying out a ‘landscape 
review’ of the institutions, processes and structures in place to support high 
standards of conduct in public life. The review is broad in scope and considers 
all public institutions including Local Government.  

5.2 This review intends to:

 Consider the evidence as to how well ethical standards are upheld in 
public life in the UK;

 Review the evidence on the strength of the UK's arrangements for 
regulating and promoting ethical standards;

 Review the adequacy and continuing relevance of the Seven Principles of 
Public Life; 1) Selflessness 2) Integrity 3) Objectivity 4) Accountability 5) 
Openness 6) Honesty 7) Leadership;

 Identify examples of best practice in the regulation of ethical standards;

 Identify examples of best practice in the promotion of cultures that 
celebrate and encourage high ethical standards.

6.   Next Steps

6.1 The consultation exercise closes on 18 December 2020.  A further report will 
be brought to the Committee when the outcome of the consultation exercise is 
known. In addition to the consultation exercise, there is a survey which can be 
completed here.   

Page 7

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSfdVKaPu3qPGME6bk4fL2J_XTUEwBWKRUXU5l4RxYgA0eWcxw/viewform


This page is intentionally left blank



The Committee on Standards in Public Life

Standards Matter 2: Public Consultation

The Committee on Standards in Public Life is carrying out a landscape review of the 
institutions, processes and structures in place to support high standards of conduct. The 
terms of reference for the review are available on our website. 

Respondents may want to familiarise themselves with CSPL's map of the UK's standards 
regulators which is available here.

This consultation runs from 11:00 on the 22 September 2020 to 17:00 on the 18 December 
2020.

Anyone with an interest in public standards may make a submission. The Committee 
welcomes submissions from members of the public. 

Replies to this consultation should be emailed to public@public-standards.gov.uk. Further 
details on how to respond are below.

Consultation Questions:

Question 1: Standards of Conduct in the UK

A. How well do you think ethical standards - as enshrined by the Seven Principles of 
Public Life - are upheld in public life today?

B. Do you believe that there have there been any notable shifts in approaches or 
attitudes to ethical standards in public life in recent years?

C. What do you see as the most significant threats to ethical standards in public life 
today?

Question 2: The Seven Principles of Public Life

A. Do the Seven Principles of Public Life accurately describe the appropriate ethical 
responsibilities for those in public roles, including both political and non-political office-
holders?

B. Would you amend or replace any of the principles or their descriptors? If so, how?

Question 3: The UK's arrangements for regulating standards

A. Are you confident that the UK's arrangements for regulating ethical standards are 
robust and effective?

B. Are there any areas of public life where regulation on issues of ethical standards is 
not strong enough? 

Page 9

https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/the-committee-on-standards-in-public-life
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/standards-matter-2-terms-of-reference
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/standards-matter-2-terms-of-reference
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-standards-in-england-25-years-since-the-creation-of-cspl
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-standards-in-england-25-years-since-the-creation-of-cspl
mailto:public@public-standards.gov.uk


Question 4: Best practice in standards regulation

A. What makes an effective standards regulator?

B. Do the UK's standards regulators have the right powers and remit to act effectively? 

C. Should the independence of standards regulators be enhanced and protected, and if 
so, how? 

Question 5: Creating ethical cultures 

A. How can the Seven Principles best be embedded within a public sector 
organisation's working culture? 

B. What are the most significant obstacles to embedding high ethical standards in a 
public sector organisation? 

How to make a submission:

Submissions can be sent either in electronic format or in hard copy.

Submissions must:

●  State clearly who the submission is from, i.e. whether from yourself or sent on 
behalf of an organisation;

●  Include a brief introduction about yourself/your organisation and your reason for 
submitting evidence;

●  Be in word, rtf, or odt format, not PDF;

●  Be concise – we recommend no more than 2,000 words in length; and

●  Contain a contact email address.

Submissions should:

●  Have numbered paragraphs; and

●  Comprise a single document. If there are any annexes or appendices, these 
should be included in the same document.

It would be helpful if your submission included any factual information you have to offer from 
which the Committee might be able to draw conclusions, and any recommendations for 
action which you would like the Committee to consider.

The Committee may choose not to accept a submission as evidence, or not to publish a 
submission even if it is accepted as evidence. This may occur where a submission is very 
long or contains material which is inappropriate.

Submissions will be published online with any contact information (for example, email 
addresses) removed.

Page 10



The Committee will publish anonymised submissions (where the name of the respondent 
and any references to named individuals are removed) where a respondent makes a 
reasonable request to do so.

Submissions sent to the Committee after the deadline of 17:00 on 18 December 2020 may 
not be considered.

We can only accept submissions via email.  Please email your submission to: 
public@public-standards.gov.uk

If you have any questions, please contact the Committee’s Secretariat by email 
(public@public-standards.gov.uk). If you have any questions you would prefer to discuss by 
telephone, please include your contact number in the email.

Page 11

mailto:public@public-standards.gov.uk
mailto:public@public-standards.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Standards Committee

19 November 2020

TITLE: Standards Committee Annual Report

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Sybil Ralphs MBE- Council Leader 

CONTACT OFFICER: Linden Vernon - Senior Officer (Governance 
and Member Support)

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific

Appendix A – Role of the Committee

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 To review the work of the Standards Committee during 2019/2020.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the report be noted.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 This report provides an overview of the issues considered by the Standards 
Committee during 2019/20.  This included the following matters:

 Bitesize Briefing
 Code of Conduct - Dispensations
 Committee on Standards in Public Life - Ethical Standards Review
 Monitoring complaints received regarding alleged breaches of the Code of 

Conduct
 The Annual Letter received from the Local Government Ombudsman

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 High standards of conduct are integral to the Council achieving its corporate 
priorities.

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



5. Alternative Options

5.1 There are no options to consider.

Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Standards Committee Reports Linden Vernon
Senior Officer (Governance and Member 
Support)
linden.vernon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

6. Detail

6.1 Article 9 of the Council’s Constitution defines the role of the Standards 
Committee and is shown in full in Appendix A to this report.  In summary this 
includes:

 To promote high standards of conduct by elected and co-opted members 
and staff

 To advise the Council, monitor the operation and provide training/notes on 
local codes of conduct, protocols or other ethical guidance for Members 
and staff 

 Granting dispensations to District Councillors
 To consider and where necessary take action regarding complaints for 

breaches of the Code of Conduct
 To promote Member development and training on ethics and standards 

generally within the District Council
 To monitor the Council's corporate complaints procedure including any 

references to the Local Government or Housing Ombudsman and to 
consider any implications for the Council’s codes, protocols or ethical 
guidance

 To advise the Council on the adoption or revision of the Constitution

6.2 The current membership of the committee is provided below. The Council’s 
Independent Persons continue to be invited to attend and participate at 
Committee meetings.  

Standards Committee Composition
District Councillors  Councillor Geoff Bond (Chair) 

 Councillor Ben Emery (Vice-Chair) 
 Councillor James Aberley   
 Councillor Ian Herdman   
 Councillor Kevin J Jackson   
 Councillor Brian Johnson   
 Councillor Kate Martin   
 Councillor Phil Taylor   
 Councillor Peter Wilkinson  

Page 14

https://democracy.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=191


Standards Committee Composition
Town/Parish representatives 
(non-voting)

Cllr David Fowler
Cllr Barbara Hughes

Independent Persons Mr Harry Mawdsley
Mr Philip Brough (substitute)

Bite Size Briefing

6.3 Following the local elections held in May 2019 councillors received a 
presentation on the role of the Committee.  This included an overview of the 
Council’s decision making process and its Ethical Framework.  The 
presentation also included a summary of the Council’s obligations to comply 
with the requirements of the Localism Act 2011 with regards to standards.  
These included:

 The duty to promote and maintain high standards of conduct
 The adoption of a Code of Conduct
 Having arrangements in place to deal with standards complaints
 The need to declare and record Pecuniary and ‘Other’ Interests

Code of Conduct - Dispensations

6.4 Section 33 of the Localism Act made provision for the circumstances where 
dispensations may be granted.  The power to grant dispensations has been 
delegated by Council to the Standards Committee, in consultation with the 
Independent Person.  Previously, under the old Code of Conduct, general 
exemptions were provided to all councillors with regard to prejudicial interests 
in any business of the authority where that business related to certain 
functions of the authority.

6.5 The arrangements introduced by the Localism Act 2011 did not reproduce 
these exemptions and as a result councillors could effectively breach the Code 
of Conduct should they take part in a meeting where any of these matters 
were being discussed and they have a disclosable pecuniary interest in the 
matter.  

6.6 That Committee granted general dispensations to all councillors for a period of 
four years in respect of:

 An allowance, payment or indemnity given to members.
 Any ceremonial honour given to members.
 Setting council tax or a precept under the Local Government Finance Act 

1992 as amended from time to time or any superseding legislation.
 Housing, where the councillor is a tenant of the authority or occupies a 

property of the authority provided that those functions do not relate 
particularly to the councillor’s tenancy, occupancy or lease.

 Setting the local council tax support scheme 
 Setting a local scheme for the payment of business rates

Page 15



Committee on Standards in Public Life - Ethical Standards Review

6.7 The report informed Members about the best practice recommendations made 
by the Committee on Standards in Public Life after their recent review into 
ethical standards in local government. 

6.8 The recommendations were subsequently adopted into the Council’s local 
ethical framework.  These included making revisions to the Code of Conduct 
(prohibitions on bullying and harassment, requiring councillors to comply with 
any formal standards investigation and prohibiting trivial or malicious 
allegations by councillors) and the adoption of initial assessment criteria for 
use under the Council’s Arrangements for dealing with Standards Complaints 
under the Localism Act 2011.

Monitoring complaints received regarding alleged breaches of the Code of 
Conduct

6.9 The Committee continued to receive regular complaint monitoring reports 
regarding alleged breaches of the Code of Conduct.  These reports updated 
members on the number and nature of complaints dealt with by the Monitoring 
Officer and explained:

 If these related to district or town/parish councillors
 If any further action should be taken
 If further investigations were considered to be appropriate

6.10 This information is then used to identify trends and consider themes for which 
training seminars may be planned.  The table below summarises the 
complaints received for the previous years and compares these with the 
Authority’s Strategic Alliance partner, High Peak Borough Council (HPBC).

No. of ComplaintsYear
Staffordshire 
Moorlands 
Parish Cllr

Staffordshire 
Moorlands 
District Cllr

Staffordshire 
Moorlands 

Total

High 
Peak

Parish 
Cllr

High 
Peak

Borough 
Cllr

High 
Peak
Total

2013/14 3 1 4 10 1 11
2014/15 5 1 6 2 1 3
2015/16 3 12 15 4 0 4
2016/17 9 16 25 4 2 6
2017/18 5 8 13 1 3 4
2018/19 2 9 11 2 1 3
2019/20 6 26 32 19 1 20

The Annual Letter received from the Local Government Ombudsman 

6.11 The Annual Letter of the Local Government Ombudsman was considered by 
the Committee at its meeting in November 2019.  The table below provides a 
summary of the number of complaints dealt with by the Ombudsman set 

Page 16



against the total number of complaints received by the Authority.  For 
comparison purposes figures for previous years are also provided together 
with details for HPBC.

No. of Ombudsman Complaints
SMDC HPBC

Year

No. of  
Enquiries 

or 
Complaints

Total 
Number of  
Complaints

No. of 
Enquiries 

or 
Complaints

Total 
Number of 
Complaints

2012/13 14 439 10 404
2013/14 12 280 20* 372
2014/15 10 284 12 413
2015/16 13 258 11 368
2016/17 10 245 8* 448
2017/18 12 193 15 308
2018/19 6 119 7 223

* This includes one complaint from the Housing Ombudsman Service.  

6.12 The relatively small number of complaints that reach the Ombudsman 
compared to the total number of complaints received by the Authority 
illustrates the strength of the Council in ensuring complaints are dealt with 
promptly and appropriately.

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

Article 9 - The Standards Committee

9.1 Standards Committee
The Council has established a Standards Committee.  

9.2 Composition

(a) Membership.   The Standards Committee will comprise:

 nine elected members of the Council, appointed proportionally;

 up to two Town or Parish Council members may be co-opted on to the 
Committee as non-voting members.

(b) Independent Person.  The Council’s Independent Person and their substitutes 
will be invited to attend and participate at committee meetings but will not be 
entitled to vote at meetings.

9.3 Role and Function

The Standards Committee will have the following roles and functions:

(a) To promote high standards of conduct by elected and co-opted members and 
staff of Staffordshire Moorlands District Council. 

(b) To advise the District Council on the adoption or revision of local codes of 
conduct, protocols or other ethical guidance for Members and staff. 

(c) To monitor the operation of the Council's codes of conduct, protocols or other 
ethical guidance. 

(d) To provide briefings, training or advisory notes to elected and co-opted 
Members and staff relating to the Council's codes of conduct, protocols or other 
ethical guidance. 

(e) Where appropriate, granting dispensations to District Councillors from 
requirements relating to interests set out in the Members Code of Conduct. 

(f) To consider and where necessary take action regarding complaints for 
breaches of the Code of Conduct by the District Council’s members and have 
arrangements in place to deal with complaints for Parish and Town Councils.

(g) To promote Member development and training on ethics and standards 
generally within the District Council. 

(h) To monitor the Council's corporate complaints procedure including any 
references to the Local Government or Housing Ombudsman and to consider 
any implications for the Council’s codes, protocols or ethical guidance. 

(i) To advise the Council on the adoption or revision of the Constitution in 
accordance with Article 14. 

Page 19



9.4 Delegated Powers
The Standards Committee has full delegated power to act within its defined role and 
function. 

Page 20



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Standards Committee

19 November 2020

TITLE: Local Government Ombudsman Annual 
Letter

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Ralphs - Council Leader SMDC

CONTACT OFFICER: Karen Lomas - Head of Customer Services

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific

Appendices Attached: Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 
Annual Review Letter 

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 To advise members of the content of the Ombudsman’s Annual Letter for the 
period April 2019 – March 2020.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That members note the content of the Ombudsman’s Annual Letter (included 
at Appendix A).

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The Local Government Ombudsman's Annual Review Letter summarises 
complaints and enquiries received over the last 12 months. The letters are 
published on the Ombudsman's web site together with specimen data used to 
inform the Ombudsman's Annual Report.

3.2 In 2019/20 the Ombudsman received 5 new enquiries or complaints, 
compared with 6 in the previous year.  Details of the decisions made and 
investigated complaints in 2019/20 are summarised as follows:-

Service Area Complaint Finding

Upheld (2)

Planning & 
Development

The complainant (Mr C) 
says the Council failed to 
properly
consider his objections to a 

In August 2017 the Council received a 
planning application to extend the 
property neighbouring Mr C’s home. 
In September the Council issued 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



Service Area Complaint Finding

neighbour’s planning 
application in 2018. He says 
the Council was wrong to 
allow planning permission. 
In addition, he says the 
Council failed to reply to his 
complaint within its ten 
working day target.

neighbour notification letters and Mr C 
submitted his objections on 10 
October. The Planning Officer visited 
the site that month. In February 2018 
the applicant submitted revised plans. 
Mr C submitted his objections on 15 
February. Later that day the Planning 
Officer completed their report on the 
application. They took account of the 
Core Strategy Development Plan, the 
National Planning Policy Framework 
and Supplementary Planning 
Guidance. The Officer noted 
objections received from Mr C and 
assessed each key point. There was 
a small breach of the 45 degree test 
but this was a “minor breach” and not 
significant enough to warrant refusal 
of the application. The Council 
granted planning permission, with 
planning conditions, that day. On 23 
April Mr C emailed the Planning Team 
with his complaint about the decision. 
He felt the breach of the 45 degree 
test was not minor. The Council 
received the complaint but did not 
refer it to a Service Area Manager. On 
22 May Mr C contacted the Council 
for a response. The Council replied 
the next day apologising for the delay. 
It issued a full reply on 31 May and 
explained how the 45 degree test was 
considered and why planning 
permission had been granted. Mr C 
pursued his complaint in 2019 and 
the Council issued a final response in 
April 2019.

The Ombudsman upheld the 
complaint (because of the delay in 
responding to Mr C’s complaint). The 
Council apologised in May 2018 for 
the delay in complaint handling which 
was considered to be a reasonable 
remedy.

Planning 
&Development

The complainant, Ms W, 
complained about the way 
in which the Council 
considered neighbouring 
residents’ proposals to 
extend their home. In 
particular, officers: a) did not 
properly consider the loss of 

Ms W’s property was back to back 
with the application site. It was a two 
storey house, whereas the application 
property was a bungalow. The two 
dwellings had a common rear 
boundary. The ground sloped down 
from Ms W’s property towards the 
application site. This meant Ms W’s 

Page 22



Service Area Complaint Finding

privacy she would suffer 
through a new window in 
the extended roof space of 
the application property; and 
b) provided her with 
confusing and incorrect 
information throughout the 
planning
process. She had to keep 
challenging this information 
both verbally and by email. 
She felt uncomfortable in 
doing so.

ground floor rear facing windows were 
almost level with the existing roof 
space of the application property. 7. 
The Council notified Ms W of the 
proposals late in August 2018. Ms W 
said she did not receive a notification 
letter and did not have the opportunity 
to object to the proposals and the 
impact on her amenity.

The Council was at fault in the way in 
which officers assessed the impact of 
her neighbours’ development 
proposals on Ms W in the form of loss 
of privacy. But she did not suffer 
significant injustice, as the decision to 
approve the proposals would not 
have been different without this fault.

Not upheld (0)

Closed after initial enquiries (3)

Planning 
&Development

Mr X complained about the 
lack of support received for 
his planning application.

Mr X submitted a planning application 
for a garage and wind turbines. The 
planning application was refused 
because of inadequate information 
supporting the turbines. Mr X was 
unhappy with the decision and the 
length of time taken to determine the 
planning application. Mr X had a right 
of appeal against the Council’s 
decision and also against any failure 
to determine the planning application 
within a specific time. The 
Ombudsman saw no reason why an 
appeal could not have been made in 
both cases. 

Councillor Conduct 
and Standards

The complainant, Mr B, was 
unhappy that the Council 
refused to investigate his 
code of conduct complaint 
about a councillor under the 
Council’s standards 
arrangements.

The Ombudsman decided not to 
investigate Mr B’s complaint. This is 
because the alleged fault by the 
Council did not appear to have 
caused Mr B to suffer a
significant personal injustice.

Page 23



Service Area Complaint Finding

Planning & 
Development

The complainant, Mr B, 
alleged that the Council 
failed in its duties and failed 
to properly follow its 
procedures in dealing with 
an outline planning 
application for housing on a 
site adjacent to his land and 
property. He said it failed to 
engage with the local 
community and that the 
proposed development will 
impact negatively on his 
view and amenity.

Following site visits by the case 
officer, and consideration of the 
application by the Planning 
Committee, the Council granted 
outline planning permission for a 
housing development on a site behind 
Mr B’s land and property. Unhappy 
with this decision, Mr B complained to 
the Council stating it had failed to 
engage with the local community; 
failed to visit him despite his requests; 
failed to take into account the impact 
on his view and on light and noise 
pollution and wrongly assessed the 
application under its policy for large 
villages.The Council addressed the 
issues he had raised under the two 
stages of its complaints procedure. It 
explained it had satisfied the publicity 
requirements set out in legislation, 
had consulted with the Parish Council 
and local ward members and taken 
into consideration the objections 
made against the scheme and the 
representations made in support of it. 
It also explained the case officer had 
visited the site a number of times and 
had taken into account the position of 
his property. It clarified that there is 
no private “right to a view” and that 
the siting of the new houses would be 
determined at the reserved matters 
stage. It provided detailed comments 
on why the application had been 
determined under the Large Village 
policy and pointed out that in fact 
there had been a conflict with that 
policy which had been recognised by 
the officer but that there had been 
material considerations which 
outweighed this conflict. It concluded 
the matter had been dealt with 
correctly and advised Mr B there was 
no further action it could take.

Referred back for local resolution (0)

3.3 A copy of the Ombudsman's letter is attached as an appendix to this report.

Page 24



3.4 Members may also wish to note that the small number of complaints reaching 
the Ombudsman is set against a background of 82 complaints received by the 
Council in the period in question, which helps to illustrate the strength of the 
Council in ensuring complaints are dealt with promptly and appropriately.  

 
3.5 Below is a table showing Local Government Ombudsman figures for 13 Local 

Authorities. The average for upheld complaints across the 13 is 43%.

Figures for Upheld / Not upheld
(detailed investigations carried out)

Complaints 
and 

enquiries 
received 
2018/19

Decisions 
made 

2018/19

Upheld Not 
upheld Total % Upheld

Cannock Chase 2 2 0 2 2 0%

Castle Point 6 4 1 3 4 25%

Chorley 4 1 1 0 1 100%
Fenland 3 1 0 1 1 0%
Forest of Dean 8 2 2 0 2 100%
High Peak Borough Council 3 0 0 0 0 0%
Hinckley & Bosworth 13 6 0 6 6 0%
Kettering 5 0 0 0 0 0%
Rugby 7 3 0 3 3 0%
Selby 12 5 3 2 5 60%
South Derbyshire 5 2 1 1 2 50%
Staffordshire Moorlands 5 2 2 0 2 100%
Wyre Forest 6 2 2 0 2 100%

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 Ensure our services are easily available to all our residents in the appropriate 
channels and provided 'right first time’.

5. Alternative Options

5.1 There are none to consider.

Mark Trillo 
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Karen Lomas
Head of Customer Services
karen.lomas@staffsmoorlands.gov.
uk

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Standards Committee 

19 November 2020

TITLE: Member Development Annual Review

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Sybil Ralphs - Council Leader 
SMDC

CONTACT OFFICER: Linden Vernon - Senior Officer (Governance 
and Member Support)

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific

Appendices Attached – None

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 To provide a review of councillor development.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the report be noted.

3. Executive Summary

1.1. The Learning and Development Programme for councillors is focused on 
responding to members’ training requirements and also aims to address any 
changes in legislation and the Council’s priorities.

1.2. Due to the election in May 2019, the Programme was focussed on the 
development of a series of seminars for the induction of councillors.

1.3. Generally, all members are invited to attend all events, with some seminars, 
particularly around regulatory matters, such as Planning and Licensing, being 
essential for members of those committees to attend in order to fulfil 
requirements as set out in the Council’s Constitution.

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 Providing effective training and development opportunities for councillors is 
integral to the achievement of the Council’s corporate priorities.  

Page 27

Agenda Item 8



5. Alternative Options

5.1 Views on the delivery of the learning and development programme from 
Committee members are welcomed.

Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Sally Hampton
Member and Community Services Officer
sally.hampton@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

6. Detail

6.1 The Learning and Development Programme aims to ensure that councillors 
are supported to deliver the Council’s statutory and corporate obligations, 
objectives and priorities and to provide Members with the information they 
need to fulfil their roles. The Member Development Group overseas the 
Programme.

6.2 The Group develops a programme of learning and development opportunities 
for all councillors that is updated on a rolling basis with activities identified 
through a variety of channels. Learning and development opportunities should 
benefit councillors as individuals in their various roles and ultimately have a 
positive effect for the Council and the community.  

6.3 In preparation for the new Councillor Induction, the Group considered each 
item of the Induction Programme 2015 and gave feedback and comments. 
This information was taken into account and used to develop an improved 
programme for 2019.

6.4 Members are requested to complete evaluation forms after each session.  
Scores and comments are compiled and circulated to the course providers 
and are used to inform the structure and content of future courses. 

6.5 Seminars are mainly delivered by officers ‘in-house’ which has been shown to 
be a very cost effective method and the feedback from councillors supports 
the use of internal expertise which allows for sessions to take into account the 
Council’s specific policies and procedures. However, there are occasions 
where the Council needs to draw on external expertise and have been used 
where required (e.g. Data Protection which was provided by a representative 
from Info Planet Ltd, Safeguarding by an independent trainer and Chairing and 
Effective Meetings which was facilitated by the Local Government Association)

6.6 The Induction Programme included the following seminars (sessions are open 
to all councillors unless otherwise stated): 

Page 28



Seminar Date No. of District 
Councillors in 
attendance

Planning Applications 
Committee Training

21st May 2019 15 

General Planning Training 6th June 2019 10

Local Plan Seminar 12th June 2019 22
Licensing Training 21st June 2019 15
Code of Conduct
(also available to parish 
councillors/clerks)

24th June 2019
3rd September 2019

23
4

Social Media, PR and 
Communications 

1st July 2019 13

Green Belt Planning Training 18th July 2019 10
Chairing & Effective Meetings 4th September 2019 15
Data Protection 10th September 2019 9
Financial Awareness 16th September 2019 15
Safeguarding Awareness 14th October 2019 15
Climate Change – The Science
(also available to parish 
councillors)

16th December 2019
 2.:30pm
 6:30pm

9
5

Emergency Planning 20th February 2020 9
Climate Change Lecture
(available to staff, district & 
parish councillors)

25th February 2020
 12:30pm
 3:00pm

9
2

6.7 More recently seminars have been arranged via Microsoft Teams to provide 
councillors with an update with regards to changes to the current planning 
system and the Planning White Paper.

6.8 Course materials, including presentations, are automatically published on the 
Councillors’ Portal area of the Authority’s Intranet which can be accessed by 
all members. 

6.8 In addition to the main development programme, support has been on-going 
around Members’ use of IT and the roll out of the iPads.  This includes 
guidance on the use of iPads, the My View system and the Council’s 
committee management system, Modern.Gov.  One to one sessions have 
been provided and guidance notes have been distributed to all members. 

7. Remote Meetings

7.1 Following the outbreak of Coronavirus and the national lockdown the decision 
was made to cancel forthcoming council meetings in order to comply with 
government requirements. Regulations were published to allow council 
meetings to take place without members being physically present which was 
not previously permissible.  A project group was set up to consider the options 
with regards to holding council meetings with participants participating 

Page 29



remotely. Various systems which enabled remote meetings to take place were 
evaluated and the preferred solution was Microsoft Teams given its integration 
with other Council systems such as Outlook.

7.2 Each member was contacted individually to download the App to their iPad 
and training was provided on the use of the new system. A guide to using 
Microsoft Teams and a Protocol was also issued to all members, along with 
scripts for Chairs and information on voting. General guidance and support is 
provided to members by the Democratic Services Team at each virtual 
meeting.

7.3 The Chair and Vice-Chair of the Planning Applications Committee attended an 
on-line training session held by the Planning Advisory Service. The session 
covered good practice and advice on running an effective virtual planning 
committee. In preparation for the first virtual committees being held, mock 
meetings were organised and a representative from the Local Government 
Association was present to provide feedback and guidance to both officers 
and members of the Planning Applications Committee. 

7.4 A number of protocols were also developed for the operation of virtual 
meetings.  These included guidance for members and participants of virtual 
meetings, including members of the public, and provided general advice 
around using Teams including using the chat function, raised hand function, 
keeping microphones muted and cameras off when not speaking.  

Page 30



Document is Restricted

Page 31

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 33

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the previous meeting.
	5 Standards Matter 2 - Public Consultation
	Appendix A 1 for Standards Matter 2 - Public Consultation

	6 Standards Committee Annual Report
	Appendix A

	7 Local Government Ombudsman Annual letter
	8 Member Development Annual Review
	10 To approve as a correct record the Exempt Minutes of the previous meeting.
	11 Standards Complaints Monitoring Report

